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Foreword from Sir John Jenkins, British Ambassador 
to Saudi Arabia

I am delighted to have been invited to provide a foreword to this second edition
of the ‘Doing Business in Saudi Arabia’ guide.

The UK has a strong historic relationship with Saudi Arabia. The Kingdom is our
largest trading partner in the Middle East and a dynamic economy with ambitious
and well-funded plans for development. With a population of some 28 million and
GDP increasing by some 6% a year, the Saudi market offers many high value 
opportunities.

Britain is the Kingdom’s second largest cumulative investor, with approximately
200 joint ventures estimated to be worth around £11.5 billion. UK visible exports
to Saudi Arabia were worth over £3 billion in 2012 – an increase of 6% on the
previous year – with a further £4.4 billion in exports of services. There is also 
considerable Saudi investment in the UK.  

I am pleased that many new UK companies are now setting up operations in
Saudi Arabia in response to the opportunities available. Strong relationships,
maximising local content and the employment of Saudi nationals are increasingly
the route to successful business here.

I am confident that that this guide will assist those companies interested in doing
business in the Kingdom. I also encourage companies to contact my experienced
UK Trade & Investment team in Saudi Arabia which is well equipped to advise
British companies wishing to enter and compete in the Saudi market, as well as
to help Saudi companies looking for UK partners.

Sir John Jenkins KCMG LVO
British Ambassador to Saudi Arabia 
www.gov.uk/government/world/saudi-arabia
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Welcome from Chris Innes-Hopkins, Director of 
UK Trade & Investment (UKTI) Saudi Arabia

I am pleased to welcome you to this second edition of the ‘Doing Business
in Saudi Arabia’ guide. 

Saudi Arabia is a high growth market which offers significant opportunities for 
UK companies across a range of sectors including healthcare, infrastructure, 
education and financial services. There is strong demand for UK expertise as 
the Saudi economy diversifies and more British companies commit to a local
presence in the market.

UK Trade & Investment (UKTI) is the government department which helps 
UK-based companies to succeed in the global economy, and supports overseas
companies to bring their high quality investment to the UK. We have experienced
trade teams in Riyadh, Jeddah and Al Khobar. Please do consult them on the
services which UKTI can offer in support of new companies establishing 
themselves, or those seeking to find a Saudi partner.

We work closely with a network of International Trade Advisers in the UK, with
leading trade associations and a wide network of public and private sector 
partners in Saudi Arabia. I hope you will find this a useful guide, and we look 
forward to being of practical assistance to you.

Chris Innes-Hopkins
Director of UK Trade & Investment Saudi Arabia
www.ukti.gov.uk/saudiarabia
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Foreword from Matthew Smith, Director General of the
Middle East Association

On behalf of the Middle East Association, I am delighted to be asked to 
contribute to the second edition of ‘Doing Business in Saudi Arabia’ Guide.  

Saudi Arabia remains the largest single market in the GCC, and any company
that is looking to do business in the Region is well-advised to acquaint itself 
thoroughly with the environment, issues and opportunities it will most likely 
encounter there. Saudi Arabia has long been a major trading partner for British
companies working in the Region, but there is significant room for growth and
new entrants in this dynamic and potentially rewarding market. While this Guide
will undoubtedly be a significant source of authoritative and up-to-date 
information for businesses that are new to Saudi Arabia, it will equally be a very
helpful aide-memoire to Companies already present in the Kingdom, and I 
congratulate UKTI on this important initiative.

The Middle East Association has been helping its members to win business in
Saudi Arabia for over 50 years, and our strong relationship with UKTI and its
predecessors has been a major element in this sustained and successful history
of trade promotion. We are proud to have been made a UKTI Trade Challenge
Partner in 2013 in recognition of our efforts, and we will be striving hard over the
coming years to provide even greater levels of support to both our members 
and to the government in its efforts to grow UK trade with Saudi Arabia. The 
opportunities, across all business sectors, are as strong as ever, and businesses
with the adaptability, diligence and patience to follow the path outlined in this
guide will be powerfully-placed to benefit accordingly.

Matthew Smith
Director General, The Middle East Association
www.the-mea.co.uk





11www.SaudiArabia.DoingBusinessGuide.co.uk

Message from Eng. 
Abdullatif Al-Othman, 
Governor and Chairman 
of the Board of Directors,
Saudi Arabian General 
Investment Authority

"We at SAGIA, alongside our partners in
the public sector, are committed to 
leveraging the Kingdom's unique position
as the largest economy in the middle east
towards sustainable economic growth.

We will be working together to ensure
Saudi Arabia's business climate fosters
and attracts quality investments that 
attribute to diversified economy, knowledge
transfer and job creation, utilising our 
talented human capital across all sectors."

Eng. Abdullatif Al-Othman
Governor, Saudi Arabian General 
Investment Authority 
www.sagia.gov.sa

Profile

HE Abdullatif A. Al-Othman was appointed
as SAGIA Governor on 18th of May 2012. 
Al-Othman is a 1979 graduate of KFUPM
with a B.A. in civil engineering. In addition, 
he earned his master's degree in business
administration from the Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology (MIT) as a Sloan 
Fellow in 1998. Al-Othman began his career
with Saudi Aramco in March 1981 as an 
engineer in Engineering and Project 
Management and throughout the 1980s,
worked as an engineer on the Gas Gathering
Project, Phase II, the Ras Tanura Refinery
Modernization Project, the Qasim Refinery
Project, the Southwest Refinery Project, and
the Ras Tanura and Terminal Projects. In
1990, he was promoted to senior project 
engineer in the Marjan Completion Division
and worked in project management until
1994.

From 1994 to 1999, Al-Othman served in
staff support functions in Engineering and
Project Management, including the Total
Quality Management Program, he also was
manager of Resource Planning and acting
manager of Southern Area Projects. From
February 1999 to February 2001, he was 
assigned to Contract Review and Cost 
Compliance in Finance and also held the 
positions of manager of Business Analysis
and manager of Long Range Planning in the 
Corporate Planning function.

In February 2001, Al-Othman moved to
Crude Oil Sales and Marketing as manager
and in June 2001, he was named executive
director of Saudi Aramco Affairs and was 
appointed vice president of Saudi Aramco
Affairs in September 2001. In 2003, he was
named vice president of Finance then was
later named senior vice president of Finance,
in May 2005. Al-Othman served as president
for the Project Management Institute (PMI)
Arabian Gulf Chapter and was a member of
the International Association of Energy 
Economics.

Source - www.sagia.gov.sa
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About UK Trade & Investment

UK Trade & Investment (UKTI) is the British Government Department 
that helps UK-based companies succeed in an increasingly global 
economy. UKTI’s range of expert services are tailored to the needs of 
individual businesses to maximise their international success. UKTI 
provides companies with knowledge, advice and practical support.

Through a range of unique services, including participation at 
selected tradeshows, outward missions and providing bespoke market 
intelligence, UKTI can help you crack foreign markets and get to grips
quickly with overseas regulations and business practice.

UKTI is an international organisation with headquarters in London and
Glasgow. Across the network UKTI employs 2,400 staff and advisors,
including those overseas in UK Embassies, High Commissions, 
Consulates and trade offices, and in the English regions.

UKTI brings together the work of the Foreign & Commonwealth Office
(FCO) and the Department for Business, Innovation & Skills (BIS). 
It draws staff and associated administration funding from both the 
parent departments, but has its own stream of programme funding, 
for which the Chief Executive is directly responsible as accounting office. 

To find out more visit the UKTI website – www.ukti.gov.uk

You can also contact the UKTI enquiry service on +44 (0) 207 215 5000
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International Market Advisor (IMA) has
been working ‘in association’ with UK
Trade & Investment (UKTI) for 8 years 
and during this time IMA and UKTI have
collaborated on 80+ market and industry
specific, trade and investment projects.

Working together IMA and UKTI support
British and foreign Embassies, High
Commissions and international 
Chambers of Commerce throughout the
world, our work has helped to identify 
the most efficient ways for British 
companies to trade with and invest 
in opportunity-rich overseas markets.

IMA in association with UKTI produces
'market' and 'industry sector' specific 
reports, the multi-media based 'Market
Advisor' series of trade publications and
the multi-format 'Doing Business in'
guides, all of which are designed to
advise and assist UK companies when
looking to trade with and invest in 
opportunity-rich overseas markets.

The reports, publications and guides are
published in a variety of formats including
websites, CD ROMs, full colour printed
brochures, PDF’s and are now available
in the ‘new’ free to download mobile 
device-friendly apps! 

The hardcopies (brochures and CD
ROMs) are then distributed across the UK
and throughout the world to key strategic
points such as British Embassies, High
Commissions, Consulates, British trade
offices, UKTI’s UK wide network of 
International Trade Advisors (ITA's), 
and local and international Chambers of
Commerce, where they can be directly
accessed, free of charge, by those 
involved in international trade.

For more information on IMA 
please visit our website: 

www.DoingBusinessGuides.com

Contact IMA
Office address

International Market Advisor
IMA House
41A Spring Gardens
Buxton
Derbyshire
SK17 6BJ
United Kingdom

Email
info@ima.uk.com

General enquiries switchboard
+44 (0) 1298 79562

Media enquiries

Newsdesk & out of hours 
+44 (0) 1298 79562

About International Market Advisor (IMA)





ABOUT THIS GUIDE

This guide aims to provide a route map of the way ahead, together with 
signposts to other sources of help.

The main objective of this Doing Business in Saudi Arabia Guide is to provide you
with basic knowledge about Saudi Arabia; an overview of its economy, business
culture, potential opportunities and to identify the main issues associated with
initial research, market entry, risk management, cultural and language issues.

We do not pretend to provide all the answers in the guide, but novice exporters 
in particular will find it a useful starting point. Further assistance is available from
the UK Trade & Investment team in Saudi Arabia. Full contact details are available
in this guide.

Saudi Arabia Overview

Designated a 'High Growth Market' by UK Trade & Investment, Saudi Arabia is
the UK's largest trading partner in the Middle East with combined UK exports of
visible goods and services amounting to £7.5 billion in 2012. 

Saudi Arabia's fast-growing economy is creating opportunities for both 
exporters and investors. These are further boosted by economic reform, market 
liberalisation, a growing private sector and moves to diversify the economy 
away from dependence on oil and gas.

Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
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SAUDI ARABIA

Saudi - UK relations have always
been important to both economies
and continue to be so. 

The Kingdom is the UK's largest
trading partner in the Middle East.
According to UKTI figures, UK 
exports of visible goods to Saudi
Arabia increased by 6% to £3.258
billion (USD $4.9 billion) in 2012
and Saudi exports to the UK 
increased by 42% to £1.749 
billion (USD $2.62 billion) in 2012. 

These figures do not include UK exports of services
which account for another £4.4 billion per year and
UK exports to KSA though ports in the UAE, which
are very difficult to measure.
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An Introduction to Saudi Arabia:

Geography & Population
The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia lies 
between the Red Sea and the Arabian
Gulf, and has a land mass about the size
of Western Europe. It contains the world's
largest continuous sand desert, known 
as the Empty Quarter, and it is the
biggest and most dominant country of
the Arabian Peninsula.

Saudi Arabia is bordered by Jordan to the
north; Iraq and Kuwait to the northeast;
Qatar and the United Arab Emirates to
the east; and Yemen and the Sultanate 
of Oman to the south. 

Riyadh is the Kingdom's capital with 
an estimated population of around five
million, the main Saudi government 
offices are also situated here. Other key
cities are Jeddah, the commercial capital
which is  located on the Red Sea coast
and Dammam on the Arabian Gulf.

Political Overview
Saudi Arabia is named after the ruling 
Al Saud family. The Kingdom was 
established by King Abdul Aziz bin Abdul
Rahman Al Saud in 1932. Since his death
in 1953, Saudi Arabia has been ruled by
several of his sons, although decisions
are taken by consensus within a wide 
circle of Princes and trusted advisors.

The Kingdom is an absolute monarchy
and is currently ruled by King Abdullah
bin Abdul Aziz Al Saud, Custodian of the
Two Holy Mosques. The King heads the
government and is also Commander of
the Armed Forces. Crown Prince Salman
bin Abdul Aziz Al Saud is Deputy Prime
Minister and Minister for Defence.  

Executive power rests with the Council 
of Ministers who are  appointed by the
King. All political parties are banned.

A national Consultative Council, the 
Majlis Al Shura, was formed in 1993. 
The King appoints its members, who have 
advisory powers to review and provide
consultation on issues of public interest.
20 women were appointed to the Shura
Council for the first time in 2013. Local
government is administered through 
general municipal councils, district 
councils and tribal and village councils. 
The country is divided into 13 provinces,
with a governor and deputy governor in
each one. Each province has its own
council that advises the governor and
deals with the development of the
province. These councils deliberate on
the needs of their province, work on the
development budget, consider future 
development plans, and monitor on-
going projects. The governor and deputy 
governor of each province serve as 
chairman and vice-chairman of their 
respective provincial council.

Demand for political reform has increased
in recent years and in 2011 the country
held its first elections, to elect half of the
members of the municipal councils. 

The Holy Koran is the constitution of the
country and the government operates 
on the basis of Islamic law (Sharia). 
Saudi Arabia has also introduced several 
secular codes including Investment 
Fund Regulations, Tax Regulations, 
Insurance Regulations as well as  others.
It is the development of these laws and 
their regulations which show the 
Government's commitment to economic
diversification and private sector growth.

Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
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Economic Overview
With a population of over 28 million, the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is the largest
economy in the Arab world and accounts
for 25% of the Arab world's GDP.

Saudi Arabia has an oil based economy
with strong government controls over
major economic activities. The Kingdom
possesses around 25% of the world's oil
reserves, is the largest swing exporter of
petroleum and plays a leading role in
OPEC. The petroleum sector accounts for
roughly 80% of budget revenues, 45% of
GDP and 90% of export earnings. 

Saudi Arabia has witnessed a period of
relatively high growth and economic
progress over the past few years. This
has been based on a strong oil sector
and record oil revenues, allowing the
Kingdom to increase public spending on
infrastructure and welfare to match the
increasing needs of a fast growing Saudi
population. In turn the non-oil private
sector is feeding off this upturn in public
spending.

The following economic reforms, which
are listed on the right, have been made
easier by the Foreign Investment Act of
2000, which led to the establishment of
the Saudi Arabian General Investment
Agency (SAGIA). SAGIA is tasked with 
increasing the country's competitiveness
and providing a one-stop shop for inward
investment.

You will find more information on their
website: www.sagia.gov.sa

In recent years, the Saudi government
has realised the need to pursue a 
strategy of economic diversification 
and reform. Reforms are underway to:

• Reduce reliance on oil and gas - 
The government is encouraging the 
growth of the private sector and 
foreign investment through new 
initiatives and the opening up of 
previously restricted industries.

• Increase employment opportunities 
for Saudis - Efforts are particularly 
focused on employing the large youth
population, which generally lacks the 
education and technical skills the 
private sector needs. The Kingdom 
has seen a substantial boost in 
spending on employer led vocational 
training and education, including a 
number of new women’s colleges 
and the opening of Princess Noura 
University - a women only facility - 
which can take up to 50,000 
students. The government is also 
encouraging foreign companies to
invest in vocational and technical 
training in support of Saudisation.

• Attract local and foreign private 
investment across all sectors - The 
government is focusing on getting 
private and foreign investment in key 
sectors including petrochemicals, 
automobile assembly, biotechnology 
and other knowledge driven 
industries.



As part of its effort to attract foreign 
investment, Saudi Arabia joined the WTO
in December 2005 after many years of
negotiations. This committed the country
to further liberalisation of its trading
regime and the creation of a more 
transparent and predictable environment
for trade and foreign investment, in 
accordance with WTO rules.

The World Bank "Ease of Doing Business
2011" report saw Saudi Arabia move up
to 11th in the world rankings, ahead of all
other Arab and Middle Eastern countries,
although it slipped to 22nd in the 2012
report.

The Government's national budget for the
2013 fiscal year, was the largest to date,
and dedicated 46% of total spending to
education and training, health and social
development and infrastructure. 

It also demonstrates that the Kingdom 
is dedicated to continuing stimulatory
spending to develop the economy and
persuade private investors to do the
same as they gradually emerge from a
phase of deleveraging. A slowdown in 
the pace of budget growth, however, 
also signals the state's goal to rein in
overspending and employ more prudent
and efficient fiscal policies in the coming
years.

Following the political unrest in several
parts of the Middle East and North Africa
Region, in early 2011, King Abdullah 
unveiled social benefits worth USD $91 
billion, with decrees outlining a boost in
welfare benefits, a minimum wage of
SR3000 (USD $800) for state employees,
bonuses for public sector workers and
students, and a drive to build new 
housing. SR250 billion (USD $66.7 billion)
will be spent on creating half a million
housing units, and SR16 billion (USD $4.3
billion) will be spent on medical facilities.

Infrastructure Development
The Saudi population is one of the fastest
growing in the world and it is expected
that there will be 29 million Saudis in
2020 - some 50% of Saudis are under 
25 years old.

Massive investment will be required 
to meet the needs of this growing 
population, creating extensive investment
opportunities. Major projects in power,
water, oil & gas, petrochemicals, 
communications, transport, mining, 
construction and social infrastructure add
up to an estimated USD $1,000 billion of
investment opportunity over the next 20
years.

Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
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Preparing to Export:

Passport/Visas

• At present, visas are required by all 
visitors to Saudi Arabia, except 
nationals of GCC states and must 
be obtained in advance.

• The expiry date of passports must 
extend at least six months beyond 
the date on which you will LEAVE 
the Kingdom.

• Visitors with passports containing 
evidence of a visit or an intended 
visit to Israel will not be admitted.

• Visas are issued based on the Hijra 
calendar. Many people get caught 
out with visa expiry as they believe 
it's valid according to the Gregorian 
calendar. Hijra months are shorter 
than Gregorian months, so check 
carefully so that you don't end up 
overstaying.

• Visa applications must first be 
notified to the Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs in Riyadh, who will, if 
approved, issue an immediate 
"E‟ authorisation number.

• Visa applications must then follow 
the requirements as specified on 
the Ministry of Foreign Affairs - 
www.mofa.gov.sa

Please look at the website of the 
Saudi Embassy in London for more 
details on how to apply online - 
www.saudiembassy.org.uk. 

Please ensure that you follow the link for
"businessmen/businesswomen visas‟,
not "business visas‟. You can download
the application form from this site and the
full requirements are listed. In support of
your application, you may also need to
submit a letter from your company, 
stating that you are a director/board
member/senior manager, or some other
senior representative, and an invitation
from a Saudi sponsor.

Business visitors need to be aware that
visas issued for the purpose of taking
part in a trade mission are for business
only. It is the responsibility of the 
individual to ensure that they understand
and comply with the terms of their visa,
and, that the British Embassy cannot be
held responsible for the consequences 
of a breach of Saudi immigration rules.

You should note that, although a visa may
be issued with a validity of up to twelve
months, the maximum permitted stay in
the Kingdom at any one time is one month.
Although, this may be extended, up to a
maximum of three months, by applying to
the appropriate Saudi Immigration Office.

The Saudi Arabian authorities have tight
immigration controls over individuals 
wishing to do the Hajj or Umrah 
pilgrimages. A business visa does not 
entitle you to do Hajj / Umrah. Anyone
overstaying the term of their visa may not
be allowed to leave the country and could
be liable to a fine and / or imprisonment. 

The issuing of visas by the Saudi 
Embassy in London can be an 
unpredictable business. Therefore, we
strongly advise you to apply for your visa
well in advance of travel, as there are
often delays in the application process.

Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
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Health & Medical services

The quality of healthcare in Saudi Arabia
is variable, ranging from excellent to poor
depending on the region, hospital and
specialty. Most Western expatriates find
the Saudi health service adequate for
routine care and minor surgery. However,
it is essential to take out full medical 
insurance when visiting Saudi Arabia, 
as there are no reciprocal healthcare 
agreements between Saudi Arabia and
the UK.

Information on health hazards, 
precautions and health regulations 
required to enter Saudi Arabia, can 
be found on the FCO website -
www.gov.uk/fco

Reputed Hospitals
in the Kingdom Riyadh:
Kingdom Hospital: 
+966 (0) 11 275 1111 

Dallah Hospital: 
+966 (0) 11 470 2777

Specialized Medical Center 
Hospital (SMC):
+966 (0) 11 434 3800

Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib 
Medical Group (SHMG):
+966 (0) 11 462 224

Jeddah:
International Medical Centre (IMC): 
+966 (0) 12 650 9000

Saudi German Hospitals Group: 
+966 (0) 12 682 9000

Dr Soliman Fakeeh Hospital: 
+966 (0) 12 665 5000

AL Khobar:
Saad Specialist Hospital: 
+966 (0) 13 882 6666

Al Mana Hospital: 
+966 (0) 13 898 7000



Getting Here and Advice About 
Your Stay 

FCO Travel Advice: The FCO website 
has travel advice to help you prepare for
your visits overseas and to stay safe and 
secure while there - Go to:
www.gov.uk/foreign-travel-advice 

Overseas Security Information for 
Business: Overseas Security Information
for Business: OSIB provides British 
business with information relating to the
security related risks which companies
face when operating overseas. For more
information, please read the details 
provided on the UKTI Overseas Security
Information for Business page – go to
www.ukti.gov.uk and search for OSIB
Saudi Arabia.

Flights to Saudi Arabia:
Domestic flights in Saudi Arabia are 
predominantly operated by Saudia which
are the national carrier and also offer 
frequent direct flights to London. Please
visit the ‘Doing Business in Saudi Arabia’
guide website to view the Saudia profile.

Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
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SAUDI ARABIA

Saudi Arabia has a very fast growing economy -
GDP growth in 2012 reached over 6%. 
The booming economy is creating great 
opportunities for both exporters and investors. 



Opportunities in Saudi Arabia:

Trade Relationship Between 
The Two Kingdoms

Saudi - UK relations have always been
important to both economies and 
continue to be so. The Kingdom is the
UK's largest trading partner in the Middle
East. According to UKTI figures, UK 
exports of visible goods to Saudi Arabia
increased by 6% to £3.258 billion (USD
$4.9 billion) in 2012 and Saudi exports 
to the UK increased by 42% to £1.749
billion (USD $2.62 billion) in 2012. These
figures do not include UK exports of 
services which account for another 
£4.4 billion per year and UK exports 
to KSA though ports in the UAE, which
are very difficult to measure.

The UK is the second largest cumulative
foreign investor in Saudi Arabia, after the
United States. There are currently around
200 UK/Saudi joint ventures with a total
investment estimated at around USD
$17.5 billion and Saudi Arabia has been
designated a 'High Growth Market' by
UKTI. There are currently high value 
opportunities in airport and railway 
development, water and wastewater, 
education and healthcare, and 
petrochemicals. The mining, ICT and 
retail sectors are also developing quickly.
Saudi investments in the UK are 
predominantly in property and portfolio
investment, sectors for which UKTI has
no responsibility. If we did factor in Saudi
portfolio and property investment it would
dwarf our trade figures.

Why Do Business in Saudi Arabia?

Although parts of the Middle East and
North Africa have seen political turmoil
since the start of 2011, Saudi Arabia 
has remained stable and investors still
view it as an attractive place to do 
business. 

The Saudi Riyal is one of the world's
most stable currencies and there have
been no significant changes in its 
exchange value during the last three
decades.

The key reasons for investing in the 
Kingdom include:

1. It is one of the world's 25 largest 
economies and the largest economy 
in the Middle East and North Africa 
Region - MENA.

2. The Kingdom is one of the world's 
fastest growing countries worldwide, 
with per-capita income forecast to 
rise from USD $25,000 in 2012 to 
USD $33,500 by 2020.

3. It has substantial cost advantages 
due to the low domestic cost of 
energy and industrial land due to 
generous subsidies and incentives.

4. It provides duty free access to other 
GCC and MENA economies, and 
enjoys good transport and 
infrastructure links which will soon 
be supplemented by a national rail 
system.

Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
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Opportunities in Saudi Arabia

Saudi Arabia has a very fast growing
economy - GDP growth in 2012  reached
over 6%. The booming economy is 
creating great opportunities for both 
exporters and investors. These are further
boosted by moves to diversify the 
economy away from dependence on 
oil and gas, economic reform, market 
liberalisation and a growing private 
sector.

Investors in Saudi Arabia enjoy 
increasingly well-developed business
clusters and value chains that set the 
nation apart from its neighbours and from
other emerging economies. The World
Economic Forum ranks the Kingdom 6th
in the world for Local Supplier Quantity
and 24th for both Value Chain Breadth
and Production Process Sophistication.
Well established, competitive and 
efficient, Saudi Arabia’s domestic 
industries – from energy and chemicals 
to transportation – provide industrial 
projects with exceptional opportunities
for cost savings.

There are opportunities at all levels in:

• Oil, gas and petrochemicals
• Power, including nuclear and 

renewable energy
• Water and Wastewater
• Financial and professional services
• Education, training and human capital

development
• Mass transport infrastructure 

including new rail, metro and bus 
links

• Environmental technology and 
services

• ICT
• Consumer and luxury goods
• Defence and security
• Healthcare and Life Sciences
• Mining



Key Sectors

Energy
The KSA’s most prominent sector is
poised for unprecedented growth, 
diversification and profitability. The high
oil revenue environment has spurred 
a boom in both oil and non-oil 
development projects. Unlike previous 
investment cycles the current round of 
investment projects is marked by heavy
private sector participation with USD $79
billion in private-sector energy projects
under development. Activity in the
world’s premier energy economy will 
develop rapidly as large scale capital
spending is applied to building new 
capacity and expansion of existing 
facilities. For example, the Arab Oil 
and gas directory forecasts major new 
 energy investments in KSA, including:

• Petrochemical Projects USD 
$90 billion

• Power Generation USD $90 billion
• Water Desalination Plans USD 

$88 billion
• Natural gas-related Projects USD 

$50 billion

Education
Already the world’s 8th highest education
spender, Saudi Arabia recently initiated a
complete reform of the current education
system, building new educational 
institutes and funding overseas degrees
and training programmes for Saudi 
students. The primary focus regarding 
the education sector is to educate young
Saudis to fill jobs which are currently
being held by expatriates. Despite this
budget figure, it's vital for Saudi Arabia 
to attract a substantial amount of foreign
investment in education to meet rapid
growth demands.

Security and Defence
Defence & Security sector is one of the
important sectors in Saudi Arabia, 
providing enormous opportunities for
British companies. Security is a fast
growing sector which is currently 
estimated to be worth between SR 2.27 -
2.51 billion (USD $605 - $670 million.) Of
this figure, around SR 318.8 million (USD
$85 million) accounts for physical and
electronic security for the banking sector.
The balance is for government, industrial,
retail, residential and commercial sectors.
The Saudi government's defence budget
continues to grow, standing approximately
at SR 153.8 billion USD $41 billion.  
The Saudi defence relationship with the
UK remains strong, as shown by the 
recent order for 72 Typhoon aircraft.

Construction
Saudi Arabia represents the largest 
construction market in the Middle East,
and one of the fastest growing 
construction markets in the world. 
They key areas that are currently being 
focussed on are improving infrastructure,
transport, education and real estate all 
of which will require construction related 
activity. According to SAGIA, there is a
USD $100 billion planned investment over
the next 10 years in transport projects.

Financial and Professional Services
The Saudi banking sector is stable and
has not experienced much turmoil during
the global financial crisis. The Saudi
Stock Exchange (Tadawul) is now the
largest in the Gulf region. The Stock
Exchange is keen to attract limited 
foreign participation, develop the 
derivatives market and to start up a future
market for other than just oil. It will shortly
move to the new King Abdullah Financial
District in Riyadh along with major banks
and other service providers.
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Healthcare
Healthcare is a thriving sector as the 
government continues to finance health-
care for its rapidly growing population.
Saudi Arabia is the largest market for
medical equipment and healthcare 
products in the Middle East, with the 
opportunity to cater to unmet demand
across the healthcare value chain 
including medical education, research, 
facilities, provision and reimbursement.

ICT
Saudi Arabia is the region's largest IT
market with strong growth in consumer
and enterprise end markets. Huge public
investments on infrastructure, health and
education have paved the way for 
advanced technology and security 
systems in the country with the 
government planning for the industry to
raise its contribution to the GDP by 20
percent by 2020. The IT market in the
country was valued at USD $3.6 billion 
in 2011 and is expected to go up to 
USD $4.9 billion by 2014.

Liberalisation is occurring across the
telecommunications industry, driving 
increases in competition, service levels
and usage. Significant unmet demands
for web-based and mobile services and
increased enterprise and government
commitment for web-based services 
provide large-scale opportunities for 
contractors and service providers, with
massive public investment in connectivity
for Economic Cities, providing unique 
opportunities for greenfield projects 
covering millions of users.

Industrial Cities
Today, industrial products make up more
than 90 percent of the Kingdom's non-oil
exports. Saudi Arabia exports petro-
chemicals, plastics, metal goods, 
construction materials and electrical 
appliances to more than 90 countries.
The Saudi Industrial Property Authority
(MODON), is responsible for developing
and supervising industrial land in the

Kingdom. Their aim is to promote 
and regulate Industrial Estates and 
Technology Zones and to encourage the
private sector to become involved in their
development and operation. Since it 
was created in 2001, MODON has been 
working towards a Saudi development 
vision for the 21st century. They are 
currently building six new industrial cities
and have expressed an interest in dealing
with UK consultants for master planning,
design, operation and maintenance, and
facilities management.

Economic Cities
In addition to the sectors and industrial
cities mentioned above, Saudi Arabia is
investing billions of dollars into the launch
of four Economic Cities in different 
regions of the country:

•  King Abdullah Economic City - 
Rabigh (near Jeddah)

•   Prince Abdul Aziz bin Mousdaed 
Economic City - Hail

•   Knowledge Economic City - 
close to Al Madinah

•  Jazan Economic City - 
close to Jazan City

These cities, once constructed, will 
be public-private partnerships that will 
create attractive investment platforms 
for foreign companies. Each is designed
to maximise investment potential in all 
sectors and deliver huge advantages 
to business located there. The cities will
promote economic diversification, create
over a million new job opportunities,
homes for 4-5 million people and 
contribute an estimated USD $150 billion
dollars to Saudi’s GDP.



SAUDI ARABIA

UKTI's team in the country can
provide a range of services to
British-based companies wishing
to grow their business in the
Saudi market. Services include
the provision of market 
information, validated lists of
agents/potential partners, key
market players or potential 
customers, arranging 
appointments, and organising
events. 
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Key Business Areas:

Key Regions For Business

Riyadh
The name Riyadh comes from the Arabic
word meaning “meadow”. Although there
doesn't seem to be much greenery
around today, before the development
that has taken place over the past 30
years, Riyadh was one of the few green
areas amid the vast desert.

The Saudi capital is strategically located
at a major crossroads of the continents 
of the world, at the heart of the Kingdom
and the eastern part of the Arabian
Peninsula, 600m above sea level.

Today Riyadh is a modern Arab 
metropolis, home to around 5.5 million
people, but only a hundred years ago, 
it was a dusty walled town with around
20,000 inhabitants. It became the capital
of the Kingdom in 1932 when the country
was founded, its growth since then has
been explosive, thanks mainly to the 
recent petroleum fuelled development
boom - much of the city is less than 30
years old!

Today, although there are only two real
skyscrapers, the Kingdom tower and the
Faisaliya building, more and more high
rise towers are springing up with five lane
highways cutting through the city. The
King Abdullah Financial District, with 
its many high rise buildings, modern 
aesthetic design is expected to be 
completed and functional in 2015, setting
the contemporary skyline for modern
Riyadh. An ambitious metro system is
also under development to reduce traffic
congestion.

Eastern Province
The Eastern Province, with a population
of around 3.5 million, is located along 
the Arabian Gulf Coast. The capital of 
the region is Dammam, was originally 
a fishing village is now the largest city 
to the east of Riyadh, and the second
largest port. Dammam is a hub for 
commodity trading, wholesale trade and
bulk retail sales. There is also some local
agriculture with a focus on livestock and
dairy products.

Dammam is surrounded by sprawling 
development, including the nearby cities
of Al Khobar, Dhahran, Jubail, Hofuf (said
to be the world's biggest oasis), and
Abqaiq (a major oil centre through which
60% of Saudi oil production passes). 
The King Fahad Causeway, completed 
in 1986 connects Al Khobar in Saudi 
with neighbouring Bahrain.

The Eastern Province has been 
dominated by the development of the oil
industry since 1933 and latterly by the
petrochemical industry since the early
80's. It is home to the world's largest
proven, recoverable reserves of oil and
gas, conservatively estimated at 260 
billion barrels and over 200 trillion 
standard cubic feet respectively. The
Ghawar Field south-west of Dhahran
stretches 280 km by 25 km and is the
largest onshore field in the world; while
the world's largest offshore field,
Safaniyah, lies some 200 km north 
of Dhahran.
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Jubail Industrial City, 120 km to the north
of Al Khobar, has seen investment of
around USD $15 billion in less than 30
years and is now rated as the world's
largest, fully integrated and most modern
petrochemical city. Saudi Basic Industries
Corp (SABIC) is the world's 4th largest
petrochemical company, and operates 
15 of its 17 manufacturing subsidiaries 
in Jubail. Further expansion in Jubail is 
expected to attract a further £30 billion
worth of investment, creating 55,000 new
job opportunities.

In addition to massive oil and gas storage
and loading facilities at Ras Tanura and
Juaymah on the East Coast, there are two
modern bulk cargo and container ports,
with a total of 64 berths, at Dammam and
Jubail, plus King Fahd Industrial Port to
serve the petrochemical industries in
Jubail. Dammam is also the headquarters
of the Saudi Railways Organisation, the
Saudi Fisheries Company, and the GCC
Interconnection Authority, with the remit
to develop a Gulf wide power grid.

Ras Az Zour Port is a new minerals 
industrial city, currently under 
development on the Gulf coast. This
multi-billion dollar city will mainly serve
the growing mining industry which is 
expected to be a major contributor to the
Saudi economy. The seaport city's main
activity will be exporting alumina and 
aluminium, importing raw materials as
well as serving the Phosphate Project for
its exports and imports. An independent
service company will operate the port as
well as the city's infrastructure. A 2400
km long railway linking the mining sites
with the port will also be built. Work is
scheduled to be completed by 2014.

Jeddah
Jeddah, located on the Red Sea coast, 
is the second largest city in Saudi Arabia,
and has been a port and trading city for
centuries. It is the Kingdom's commercial
capital, and is the main port of the 
Kingdom, responsible for half of the
country's sea traffic. Jeddah is also the
hub through which most Muslim pilgrims
arrive by air and sea to perform Omrah
and Hajj or to visit the two Holy Mosques
in Makkah and Medinah. Thanks to its air
road and sea transport links and trading
history, it's become one of the more 
ethnically diverse cities in the Kingdom.

Jeddah was originally very small, but
spread rapidly during the 20th century.
The city's corniche now stretches along
the coast for 20 km and Jeddah sprawls
over more than 1,500 square km. The
population is around 4 million and it is
considered to be one of the wealthiest
cities in the Middle East. Many leading
companies such as the Saudi Binladin
Group and Saudia have their 
headquarters in the city.

Jeddah Municipality announced its plans
to give the city a facelift, with 86 major
projects at a total cost of some USD
$600 million. The projects include the
study and design of tunnels and bridges
at intersections. The Municipality has also
prepared a list of some other 100 projects
in the Municipality's 20-year development
program. Some of these projects will be
delivered under the Public-Private 
Partnerships (PPP) and others under
build, operate and transfer (BOT) 
programs.



Doing Business in Saudi Arabia
S
A
U
D
I A

R
A
B
IA

Visit the Website and download the free Mobile App



37www.SaudiArabia.DoingBusinessGuide.co.uk

Other projects announced in Jeddah
include the Eastern Forest project, 
construction of bridges and tunnels at 12
intersections, rainwater drainage projects
(worth more than USD $122 million),
sewage water projects (over USD $200
million), upgrading of the King Abdul Aziz
International Airport (costing about USD
$5 billion), the Jeddah Islamic Port 
development projects (about USD $200
million) and the new King Abdulaziz 
International Airport (costing about USD
$7.2 billion), Jeddah Metro (about USD
$6 billion) and the world’s tallest building,
the Kingdom Tower (estimated to cost
about USD $1.5 billion).

How To Do Business in Saudi Arabia

UKTI's team in the country can provide 
a range of services to British-based 
companies wishing to grow their 
business in the Saudi market. Services
include the provision of market 
information, validated lists of agents/
potential partners, key market players 
or potential customers, arranging 
appointments and organising events. 
A majority of the aforementioned services
fall under the UKTI chargeable service
called an Overseas Market Introductory
Service (OMIS). In an OMIS, UKTI can
supply you with contacts specifically
catered to assisting your business make
inroads in the Kingdom. All contacts they
provide will be validated but UKTI can 
go as far as warming them up or even
booking meetings for you. UKTI can 
also provide a variety of other services 
including product launches, trade
receptions and networking events.

These services have to be commissioned
and are chargeable. Under this service,
the Embassy's Trade and Investment 
Advisers, who have wide local experience
and knowledge, can identify business
partners and provide the support and 
advice most relevant to your company's
specific needs in the market.

To find out more about commissioning
work, please contact your local UKTI 
office or visit www.ukti.gov.uk
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The Foreign Investment Law allows non-Saudi 
companies and individuals the possibility of 
100 percent ownership of projects and enables
them to retain the same incentives given to 
national companies.



  Challenges, Investing & Taxation:

Direct Foreign Investment

Saudi Arabian General Investment 
Authority (SAGIA) is the gateway to 
investment in Saudi Arabia. The Foreign
Investment Law allows non-Saudi 
companies and individuals the possibility
of 100 percent ownership of projects 
and enables them to retain the same 
incentives given to national companies,
although foreigners are excluded from 
investing in certain businesses. 

More details on investment regulations
and applicable taxation is available from
the website of SAGIA - www.sagia.gov.sa

For more information about doing 
consultancy work in the Kingdom, please
see The Ministry of Commerce 
website - www.commerce.gov.sa

Taxation

Taxation is a specialised subject and 
advice should be sought from specialists
practising in Saudi Arabia as part of the
planning stage before any investment is
made. The following is offered as a very
simplified introduction only.

Personal Tax
There are no personal taxes in Saudi 
Arabia. Neither Saudi nationals nor 
foreigners resident in the Kingdom are
taxed on their salaries. Saudis and GCC
nationals are subject to zakat - the 
religious wealth tax.

Corporation Tax
In general, companies pay 20% 
corporate tax. But, foreigners who derive
net income from investments in Saudi
businesses, and self-employed 

individuals who do business in the 
Kingdom, are subject to corporate tax on
a sliding scale according to their income.
A summary of the main rules and 
regulations are as follows:

Those subject to 20% tax are:

(a) A foreign partner's share in a resident
capital company,

(b) A resident foreigner who does 
business in the Kingdom,

(c) A non-resident who does business in 
the Kingdom through a permanent 
establishment.

• The tax rate on companies engaged 
in the production of oil and other 
hydrocarbons productions will be 
85%. 

• The tax rate on companies engaged 
only in natural gas investment fields 
is subject to a 30 % tax rate.

Zakat
Zakat is a religious wealth tax, which is
one of the five pillars of Islam. Saudi's,
GCC nationals and companies entirely
owned by those individuals have to pay
zakat. If companies or partner-ships are
owned by Saudi or GCC nationals and by
other foreigners, zakat is assessed on the
taxable income of the entity in proportion
to the equity interest of Saudi and GCC
nationals in the company. Complex rules
apply to the calculation of zakat liabilities.
In general, zakat is levied at a rate of
2.5% on capital that is not invested in
fixed assets or long-term investments
and on pre-incorporation expenses 
deferred, as adjusted by net results for
the year.
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Social Security Taxes
The General Organisation of Social 
Insurance (GOSI) is the government body
responsible for the enforcement and 
collection of social insurance. Employers
are required to pay Saudi social 
insurance tax on behalf of their 
employees.

For more details please see -
www.gosi.gov.sa

Tax Incentives
The government has granted tax 
concessions to six less-developed 
regions in the Kingdom, with the intention
of attracting more investment. These tax
cuts are granted for period of ten years
from the start of any project and are 
offered in the following regions:

1. Hail
2. Jazan
3. Najran
4. Al-Baha
5. Al-Jouf
6. Northern Territory

For more details about taxation, please
visit the SAGIA website www.sagia.gov.sa

Finance

The banking sector in Saudi Arabia
broadly comprises domestic banks and
branches of foreign banks. A number of
international banks such as HSBC have
partnership arrangements with domestic
banks. Banks in Saudi Arabia can offer
Islamic financing which is compliant with
Sharia, and non-Sharia compliant 
financing.

Intellectual Property Rights

Saudi Arabia has been a member of 
the World Trade Organisation since 
December 2005 and has introduced 
new legislation increasing the level of 
protection for intellectual property. 
For more information about intellectual
property in Saudi Arabia, please see the
World Intellectual Property Organisation
website - www.wipo.int

In general, a UK citizen may not apply for
a patent or trade mark in Saudi Arabia
unless they have already made the same
application in the UK. Applications must
be sent to the GCC Patent office in
Riyadh at:

GCC Patent office
P O Box 340227
Riyadh 11333
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Tel: (96611) 482 9378, 482 0136
Fax: (96611) 482 9600
Web: www.gccpo.org

Agents

Selecting the right agent is very 
important. It should be made clear from
the outset what services will be provided
and what will not. An agent may be any-
thing from a highly-proactive investor into
the business who is deeply involved on 
a day-to-day basis with all aspects of 
management, finance and marketing, to 
a hands-off "Mr. Fixit‟ who just arranges
official paperwork, and has little other 
involvement.



British companies should always try 
to visit a potential agent on his home
ground before concluding any agreement.
It is also recommended that companies
should seek legal advice before signing
agency agreements.

Recruiting Staff and Saudisation

Foreign workers form a large proportion
of the workforce - it is currently estimated
that there are around 8 million expats
working in the Kingdom.

This, coupled with rapid population
growth has led to high levels of 
unemployment among Saudi nationals,
particularly those under 25. As a result,
the Government has introduced a number
of measures designed to limit the number
of expatriates working in the country, in
the hope of boosting the employment of
Saudis. Each private sector company is
supposed to have a certain percentage of
staff depending on the type of business. 

The Ministry of Labour has the power 
to specify those occupations, trades, 
professions, activities and ventures which
are restricted to Saudis. The Minister
may, on occasions, reduce the 
Saudisation percentage in situations
where there are no adequate technically
or academically qualified workers to fill
the position, or if not possible to fill the
vacant job with Saudi nationals for 
another valid reason.

The latest Saudisation measure provides
for companies to be be colour coded 
on the basis of how many Saudis they 
employ, with Green companies employing
the highest number of Saudis, yellow for
those who have not yet achieved their

quota and red for companies who are
nowhere near their quota.

It is important to monitor your employee
situation to show that you are trying to
comply with Saudisation, as it can be 
an important factor in the awarding of 
government contracts.

The government is also currently 
boosting technical and vocational training
for its unemployed youths, to enhance
their employment value, and help the
Saudisation project. Long term 
investment, improvement in education,
and expansion of the non-oil sector are
all required in order to alleviate the 
unemployment problem. 

Patents/Trademarks/Copyright

The Saudi Arabian General Investment
Authority (SAGIA) - www.sagia.gov.sa -
has all the up to date details regarding
patents, trademarks and copyright laws
within the Kingdom. 

The Ministry of Commerce is responsible
for providing protection for trademarks
and also has information on their website
about what can and cannot be protected
- www.mci.gov.sa

Exclusivity

Saudi Law permits the appointment of
more than one agent on a regional basis,
and for particular products. Many 
companies however, prefer to appoint 
a sole agent to avoid conflict of interest
and possible mix-up especially when 
bidding for Government contracts.
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Business Visits

It is generally best to avoid visiting Saudi
Arabia in July and August due to the
heat. Also, many Saudi business people
leave the Kingdom then for their summer
holidays.

During Ramadan it can be difficult to 
do business as working hours are 
considerably shorter and many meetings
will be conducted outside of normal 
office hours, usually very late at night.
The date of Ramadan moves forward 
by about 10 days every year.

Local representation

Saudi Law does not require foreign 
companies to appoint a commercial
agent to do business in the Kingdom and
indeed Government Ministries prefer to
deal direct with UK companies rather
than through an intermediary. Companies
can make direct sales to the private 
sector from outside Saudi Arabia, but 
in practice, appointing an agent or 
distributor is the most common 
procedure for companies wishing to enter
the Saudi market. Virtually all government
purchasing is conducted by local 
tenders and requests for proposals from 
prequalified shortlists. The relationship 
between a foreign contractor and his
Saudi agent is regulated by the Ministry
of Commerce - www.commerce.gov.sa

Local Regulations

Commercial agency agreements are 
controlled by Royal Decree and by 
the Ministry of Commerce (MoC). Any
agency/distributorship contract should
follow the standard format approved by
the MoC and must be submitted to the
MoC for registration. In particular, they
should specify whether the agent will 
solicit business for the foreign principal 
in return for a commission or buy goods
from the foreign principal to sell on his
own account. The parties to the contract

may add or delete additional clauses 
that do not contradict with the relevant 
commercial regulations. UKTI can assist
with identifying potential agents on your
behalf through the Overseas Market 
Information Service (OMIS).

Communication and Advertising

Advertising
Advertising has increased in popularity
and importance in recent years, aided 
by the removal of the ban on television 
commercials. Saudi companies now use
all the advertising methods available to
them, including TV, newspapers, trade
magazines and billboards, in addition 
to trade promotion events. Several key 
international advertising agencies have
offices in the Kingdom.

Newspapers and Periodicals
There is a wide variety of magazines and
newspapers on sale in Saudi Arabia.
Newspaper advertising is available in
both the local English and Arabic press.
Rates for advertising in these publica-
tions vary greatly.

Radio and Television
Televised commercials are broadcast on
the two Saudi channels, one in Arabic,
the other in English, and broadcasts
reach all parts of Saudi Arabia. In general,
costs of advertising are lower for Saudi
than for foreign firms. All broadcasts are
vigorously screened, in order to ensure
conformity with Islamic moral and reli-
gious standards.

Telecommunications
Telecommunications services are 
provided through landlines, mobile
phones, internet and data transmission
services provided by Zain. There is full
coverage for UK networks with roaming
facilities. For more information, please
view the Zain KSA profile at www.Saudi-
Arabia.DoingBusinessGuide.co.uk or visit
www.sa.zain.com 
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Both the net and e-mail are increasingly
widely used, although the current 
telecoms infrastructure is inadequate for
the demands placed upon it, and service
can be patchy, with overloaded lines
making access difficult at peak times. 

Some internet sites are censored. Dial-up
subscription rates are very low, ADSL 
and satellite connections can also be 
installed.  Although prices are coming
down, they are more expensive and 
less reliable than in the UK. Broadband 
internet has alleviated some of these
frustrations but there are still frequent
service glitches.

Saudi has its own yellow pages, a useful
directory for finding telephone numbers:
www.saudianyellowpages.com

Postal
Postal mail is not particularly reliable. 
All mail going to Saudi Arabia needs to
be addressed to a PO Box as there is no
house/building delivery, unless you are
using an international delivery firm such
as Aramex, DHL, FedEx, or UPS. Most
business to business communication is
still conducted by fax rather than phone
or e-mail. 

International airmail to/from Europe takes
4-5 days and to/from the US 8-10 days.
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Attracting local and foreign private investment
across all sectors - The government is focusing
on getting private and foreign investment in key
sectors including petrochemicals, automobile
assembly, biotechnology and other knowledge
driven industries.



Import & Export Documentation:

Importing into Saudi

The following is an indication of the 
documents required for importing goods
into Saudi Arabia. This list is subject to
change so please consult the Ministry of
Commerce Website for up to date details
- www.mci.gov.sa

• Certificate of Origin authenticated at 
a local Chamber of Commerce and 
translated into Arabic.

• Saudi Arabian Customs Invoice 
(in triplicate) - this is required by the 
majority of imports entering Saudi 
Arabia (except those of low pecuniary
value).

• An authenticated invoice 
(in triplicate), clearly stating the 
country of origin, name of the carrier, 
brand and number of goods, and a 
clear description of the goods, 
including weight and value.

• A Bill of Lading
• Insurance documents if shipments 

are sent. Original documents must be 
accompanied by an Arabic translation.

• Saudi Arabian Standards Organisation
(SASO) Certificate of Conformity, 
issued by an approved certification 
body in the UK (please see the 
Standards & Technical Regulation
section). 

Exporting from the UK
SITPRO is the UK's trade facilitation body
dedicated to encouraging and helping
business trade more effectively and to
simplifying the international trading
process. Its focus is procedures and 
documentation associated with 
international trade.

SITPRO manages the UK Aligned Series
of Export Documents consisting of 
standard commercial, transport, banking,
insurance and official forms. SITPRO 
has a network of printers and software
providers - (please see www.sitpro.org.uk)
who are licensed to offer 32 of the 
most commonly used documents in 
international trade.

SITPRO offers advice on the documents
and procedures for the movement of
goods through its briefings, completion
guides and checklists at
www.sitpro.org.uk/trade/index You can
also call their helpdesk - Tel: +44 (0)20
7215 8150 or Email: info@sitpro.org.uk

Getting your Goods to the Market
If you are exporting goods to any country
you need to know the legal and regulatory
requirement that your consignments have
to comply with. There are several useful
websites on which you should be able to
find all the relevant information.

British International Freight Association
(BIFA) - provide assistance to companies
who are new to exporting. There is a 
directory on the BIFA web site:
www.bifa.org. Under the 'Members A-Z'
section, you can search to find members
of BIFA in a specific country. Members
will be able to advise companies on
matters such as the best modes of
transport, distribution methods, costing,
documentation and payment terms.
BIFA can be contacted on +44 (0)20 8844
2266 or by email: bifa@bifa.org

Labelling and Packaging Regulations
Although English is widely spoken in
Saudi Arabia, all consumer products have
to have Arabic labelling. If a products is
not correctly labelled it may well be 
rejected at the port of entry. Importers
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also need to be aware of product expiry
dates. Products arriving in Saudi Arabia
with short periods before expiration will
generally be rejected and prohibited from
being sold on the market. UK companies
are strongly advised to obtain copies of
the Saudi Arabian Standards relevant to
their products and to discuss labelling 
requirements with their representative or
distributor. Copies of Saudi Standards are
available from The British Standards 
Institute (BSI) - www.bsigroup.co.uk

Standards and Technical Regulation
Over 10 years ago, a Conformity 
Assessment Programme (CAP) covering
goods destined for Saudi Arabia was 
implemented by the Saudi Arabian 
Standards Organisation (SASO), originally
for 76 groups of products. CAP called 
for quality checks and inspections to be 
carried out on companies looking to 
export to Saudi Arabia and stipulated that
proof should be provided in the form of a
Certificate of Conformity. This document
can then be checked by Saudi Customs
Authorities at the port of arrival.

Further details can be obtained from:

SGS Saudi Arabia Desk: 
Tel: 01276 697865  Fax: 01276 697894
Email:gb.saudiarabia@sgs.com   
Website: www.sgs.com

SGS Saudi Office: 
Tel: +966 (0) 13 817 20 80
Website: www.me.sgs.com

Intertek Testing Services: 
Tel: (01277) 233304  
Fax: (01277) 220127  
Website: www.intertek.com
Intertek test, inspect and certify products,

as well as help improve performance and
efficiency in manufacturing, and overcome
market constraints. Certification can be
undertaken by any UK Accreditation
Service (UKAS) approved organisation.
UKAS is the sole national accreditation
body recognised by the UK government
to assess, against internationally agreed
standards, organisations that provide 
certification, testing, inspection and 
calibration services. Details can be found
on www.ukas.com

Customs and Regulations
The customs tariff on most imported
goods is 5%. There is also a protective
tariff of 12 or 20% on some imports to
support some national industries. Saudi
Arabia has been implementing the 
Brussels Harmonised Commodity 
Description and Coding System (H.S.)
since 1991. For more information on
Saudi customs, please check the web
site of the Saudi Customs Office at
www.customs.gov.sa

Import Controls
There are many goods which you are 
not allowed to bring into the country.
These include weapons, alcohol, pork, 
pornographic materials and many others.
There are also some products which 
require approval and/or registration, 
for example; pharmaceuticals, wireless
equipment, veterinary medicines, 
pesticides, and military uniforms. 
To ensure you don't bring anything into
the country which is restricted or
prohibited, please get further details from
the British Embassy in Saudi Arabia.



B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 E
T
IQ
U
E
T
T
E
, L
A
N
G
U
A
G
E
S
 &
 C
U
LT
U
R
E

Visit the Website and download the free Mobile App

SAUDI ARABIA

Saudi Arabia is experiencing an ongoing boom
in construction and related infrastructure 
projects supported by the approval in August
2010 of the 9th five-year development plan for
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("KSA"). 
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Business Etiquette, Languages 
& Culture:

Business Practices

A lot of time has to be spent getting 
to know people and establishing 
relationships before doing business 
in Saudi Arabia. It can be quite common
for meetings to be interrupted by phone
calls and people coming in, but it's 
important not be put off by this, patience
and courtesy are essential.

Office Hours

In accordance with a Royal Decree 
announced in July 2013, the official 
work-week in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia has been moved from Saturday-
Wednesday to Sunday-Thursday. Some
private sector organisations still retain a
6-day work week, with Friday serving as
the only day off.

• Public sector working days are 
Sunday to Thursday.

• Government Office hours are mainly 
8.00am to 3.00pm.

• Private sector working days are 
usually: Sunday to Thursday 8.00am 
to 12.00pm and 4.30pm to 7.30 pm

• Increasingly many private companies 
are moving to a more practical 
8.00am to 5.00pm working day.

• Banking hours are 9.30am to 4.30pm.
Sunday to Thursday.

• Shopping stores generally open 
weekdays 10.00am to 12.00pm, 
Friday 4.00pm to 10.00pm.

• All offices and shops close five times 
a day for prayer – Fajr at sunrise, 
Dhuhr at noon, Asr at around 3.00pm,
Maghrib at sunset, and Isha at night.

• The weekend is Friday and Saturday.

Working hours during the holy month 
of Ramadan are reduced - Government
offices should be open from 10.00am 
to 3.00pm. In the private sector many 
businesses will open at night in 
Ramadan, normally 10.00pm to 1.00am. 

For the most up-to-date information
about future Ramadan dates, please 
contact the British Embassy Riyadh or
visit the online British Embassy Riyadh
section. It's best to avoid non-essential
business travel around Ramadan and
Eid festivals.

Dress

Saudi businessmen often wear the 
traditional thobe and shemagh - head-
dress - in public. Saudi women and 
foreign women must wear an abaya - 
a full length black cloak - in public.  
A headscarf need not be worn but should
be carried with you in case you are told
by the religious police that you have to
cover your head. Under the abaya,
women visitors are advised to wear a 
full-length dress or trousers and top with
high neck and long sleeves, in case you
are invited to remove the abaya in less
formal business meetings. Visiting 
businessmen usually wear suits for 
appointments.

Religion

No religious practices other than Islam
are allowed. The majority of Saudis are
Sunni Muslims and many are Wahhabis
(puritans), although there are considerable
numbers of Shia Muslims in the Eastern
Province. Muslims pray five times a day
and all shops and many offices will close
to observe prayer times. Copies of the
Bible or any other non-Islamic religious
literature may not be brought into the
country, nor any non-Islamic symbols 
or statues.
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Religious Police

The Muttawa are members of the 
Commission for the Promotion of Virtue
and Prevention of Vice. They maintain 
a vigilant eye on Saudis and foreigners 
to ensure that they conform to the 
Kingdom's strict dress and behaviour
codes. Women approached by the 
Muttawa and asked to cover their hair,
should do so and move on quickly 
to avoid confrontation.

Transport

Women are not allowed to drive in Saudi
Arabia. The best way to get around for
men and women is to use a chauffeured
car supplied by the hotel or to use taxis.
Many local business contacts will be
happy to send a car to pick up foreign
visitors from their hotel.

Traffic Fines

Saudi Arabia has many traffic cameras
dotted around, waiting to catch drivers
going through red lights or speeding. 
The problem is, many people don't know
they've been caught and fined until they
try to leave the Kingdom and are refused
exit by immigration. There is a desk at the
airport where you can pay fines, but if it's
closed, you'll have to wait until it opens!
There are several options to avoid this 
situation. First of all, don't break any 
traffic laws and you'll be ok!

If you are worried you might have been
caught by a camera, and you have an
iqama you can text the number to 88993
if you are on SAWA mobile, or 625555 if
you are on Mobily, and you will get a

reply telling you if you have any fines,
which you can then pay before you try
and leave the country. Alternatively you
could call 01-2928888 through your 
landline to know the status of your fine.
Just follow the instructions after dialling
this number. The ministry of interior has
more  information about traffic violations
www.moi.gov.sa

Social Customs
  
Saudi Arabia is the strictest of all Muslim
countries and behaviour in public is 
subject to inflexible rules. Islam 
dominates all aspects of life. The sexes
are strictly segregated for example in
restaurants and in hotel swimming
pools/gyms, and no public displays of 
affection may be shown when out and
about. It is important that anyone doing
business in Saudi Arabia, or living in the
country, understands the laws and obeys
them. Alcohol consumption is forbidden,
and prison sentences vary from a few
weeks to several months with or without
flogging. Anyone caught smuggling or
distributing alcohol can face a long prison
sentence.

No pork or pork products are allowed.
During the month of Ramadan, visitors
should avoid eating, drinking or smoking
in public between dawn and dusk.
It is prohibited to take photographs of 
airports and military installations and of
other sensitive buildings. Care should
also be taken not to photograph Muslim
women without their consent.

Homosexual behaviour and adultery are
illegal and carry the death penalty.

Official Holidays
For the most up-to-date information about Public Holidays in 
Saudi Arabia, please contact the British Embassy Riyadh or 

visit the online British Embassy Riyadh section at; 
www.gov.uk/government/world/organisations/british-embassy-riyadh
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Investors in Saudi Arabia enjoy increasingly 
well-developed business clusters and value
chains that set the nation apart from its 
neighbours and from other emerging economies.



Legal:

Saudi Arabia is experiencing an ongoing
boom in construction and related 
infrastructure projects supported by 
the approval in August 2010 of the 9th
five-year development plan for the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("KSA"). 
According to the plan issued by King 
Abdullah bin Abdulaziz al-Saud, the 
KSA will see $385 billion invested in 
infrastructure development for the next
five years of 2010 to 2014. As a result 
of this tremendous injection of funding,
opportunities abound for foreign 
companies seeking to participate through
direct construction projects, but also
through a large number of services and
support activities.

It is appropriate to review the primary
laws in force in the KSA to understand
some of the issues foreign investors 
looking to enter this market will 
encounter.

Islamic Law (Shari'ah)

The law of the KSA is Shari'ah, drawn
from the Holy Qur'an (the divine 
revelation to the Prophet Mohammed)
and the Sunnah (a record of the sayings
and actions of the Prophet Mohammed).
Unlike other jurisdictions in the Muslim
world where Shari'ah law is applied only
in specific contexts (e.g., family law and
inheritance), in the KSA, Shari'ah law is
the law of the land in all cases, and other
laws are enforceable only to the extent
that doing so does not violate the 
precepts of Shari'ah.

Shari'ah is a unique and distinctive 
system and in no instance should parties
assume that matters addressed under
Shari'ah will have outcomes comparable
with those anticipated in other
jurisdictions. Judgments in the KSA 
are not usually published, and cannot 
establish binding precedents, unlike 
in common law jurisdictions. The laws
themselves are not entirely codified, and
as such, the processes for reaching a
judgment in any specific matter are
driven by methodologies distinct from
those understood in civil code 
jurisdictions.

Shari'ah recognises broad freedoms 
for parties to negotiate terms in their 
own contracts, unless the activities are 
prohibited elsewhere in the Shari'ah or 
violate the requirements of public policy.
Parties are required to honour principles
of fairness and good faith in their 
dealings, which implies absolute clarity
on certain contract terms and provisions,
and also requires avoiding uncertainty 
or deception. 

One critical distinction between Shari'ah
and other legal systems involves the 
concept of interest as applied in the 
KSA. Terms in contracts involving 
payment or receipt of interest are not
generally enforceable, which affects 
numerous aspects of contracting from
payment arrangements, late payment
penalties, shipping terms, insurance
terms, and damages, where concepts of
interest are typically ingrained into terms
and clauses and assumptions applied in 
other jurisdictions.
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Key Government Laws

While the substance of Shari'ah is not 
alterable, the processes for applying
Shari'ah in specific matters are subject 
to government control, which may adopt
processes for dispute resolution (see
below), enforcement procedures, and 
establish other general principles and key
terms as requirements before companies
will be entitled to do business in the KSA,
or may establish additional criteria before
companies are entitled to contract with
the government itself. For foreign 
companies looking to contract directly
with the KSA government, the most 
important laws include:

Government Tenders and 
Procurement Law
All government entities, and most 
government-owned companies, apply the
Government Tenders and Procurement
Law to all contracts with third parties 
selling goods or services. The law 
generally follows international best 
practices to ensure free and fair bidding,
but interpretation of the principles and
application of the law to actual contracts
results in a series of confirmations and
verifications, which require rigorous 
review to determine precisely how a 
foreign company may best comply with
the requirements to actually execute 
projects or deliver goods or services. 

Foreign investors need to be aware 
of the context of this Law, because it 
may override the wording in a specific 
Government contract to the extent of 
any inconsistency.

Foreign Investment Law
One of the key assumptions built into
both the Government Tenders and 
Procurement Law and many other 
contracts is the requirement that 
companies seek to establish themselves
in the KSA and provide goods and 
services through a local establishment.
While many foreign companies prefer 
to provide goods and services from 
offshore, failure to establish a legitimate
presence in the KSA will bar companies
from directly meeting with their clients
and customers, and will restrict their 
ability to operate effectively and receive
payments.

Foreign investment in the KSA is 
regulated by the Foreign Investment Law
and all foreign investors in the KSA must
have a license issued under this law. 
In some ways, the Foreign Investment
Law in the KSA is uniquely favourable to 
foreign companies, as it permits 100% 
ownership of either branches of most
forms of limited liability companies. 

Foreign companies are authorised to 
establish branches of foreign companies,
which are 100% owned by the parent
that established the branch, limited 
liability companies (LLCs), in which 
at least two partners are required to 
participate, joint ventures, and consulting 
offices, among others. Foreign companies
may also qualify to invest in joint stock
companies, subject to more stringent 
requirements. In practice, the LLC is 
the most common business structure. 



There is no minimal capital requirement
but in practice there are certain levels of
capital established in various business
sectors, which are set by the government
on a case-by-case review of the proposed
activities of the company. In most cases,
a minimum of Saudi Riyals 100,000 is to
be expected, unless the type of entity 
requires additional capitalisation.

One critical exception to the broad 
permission for 100% ownership consists
of foreign companies practicing any form
of "wholesale or retail trading," a term
that extends to cover companies seeking
to market their products in the KSA, 
companies looking to import products 
for sale to third parties, and many other
types of activities that in other 
jurisdictions might be performed by 
a representative office. For a "trading 
company," a foreign company must 
invest a minimum of Saudi Riyals 20 
million, and foreigners are restricted from
owning more than 75% of the equity in a
"trading company." If a foreign company
does not establish a trading company, it
will be permitted to only trade in products
through duly appointed agents and 
distributors, or if those products are
themselves produced within the KSA 
in an industrial facility.

The Saudi Arabia General Investment 
Authority (SAGIA) is the primary 
government entity responsible for foreign
investment into the KSA. SAGIA serves
multiple functions involving foreign 
investors, from implementing the foreign
investment licensing regime, reviewing
conduct by licensed companies to ensure
they comply with foreign investment and
all other laws, and promoting the KSA as
an attractive destination for investment. 

SAGIA operates primarily through a 
network of "one stop shops" where
SAGIA houses representatives and 
offices of other ministries and 
government agencies so that foreign 
investors can find most of the various
rules and regulations with which they
need to comply from a single location.

Establishing SPVs to channel investment
into the KSA can be a problematic 
strategy. In recent years, SAGIA began
requiring all foreign investors to present
audited and attested financial statements
for the last 3 years, and new requirements
can arise at any time and without notice.
As such, it is best to confirm the 
arrangements before undertaking any 
investment.

Employment Law
Relations between employers and 
employees are governed primarily by 
the Labour Law (Royal Decree No. M/51
dated 23 Sha'ban 1426), which covers 
all aspects of employment relations, 
including employment contracts, wages
and benefits, leaves, working hours and
the termination of employment. There is
also extensive regulation relating to the
women in the workplace.

Non-Saudi nationals may work in Saudi
Arabia provided they have prior approval
from the Ministry of Labour. Applicants
must have an entry visa issued by the
Saudi Embassy from the country of 
origin. Employers are required to secure
work permits and residence permits
("Iqama") for foreign employees brought
into the country within 90 days of the 
employee's arrival. Similar to other 
Gulf countries, 
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Saudi Arabia has a sponsorship system,
which means that expatriate workers can
enter, work and leave the host country
only with the permission or assistance of
their sponsor. However, in Saudi Arabia,
the sponsorship system extends to a
number of other services and routine 
activities, with requirements often arising
for presentation of a letter of support
from a sponsor before an expatriate 
will be permitted to lease a residence,
open a bank account, rent a vehicle, or 
perform many other types of common 
transactions.

The KSA government has long 
implemented various "Saudization" 
policies intended to encourage 
employers to hire Saudi nationals 
in preference to foreign expatriates. 
A system called "Nitaqat" also exists, 
by which employers are penalised if 
they fail to achieve the Saudization 
targets that apply to them.

Zakat and Income Tax Law
Saudi Arabia operates a dual taxation
system, with KSA nationals and entities
owned 100% by other nationals of the
Gulf Cooperation Council (the countries
of Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi
Arabia, and the United Arab Emirates)
(the "GCC") paying "zakat," a wealth tax
based on 2.5% of the total capital held
by a person. Foreign entities, which 
include almost every company owned 
by non-GCC persons, are subject to the
requirements of the "income tax" law.
When the two entities operate jointly, 
accounting requirements to determine 
tax assessments can be an unusually
challenging, but in principle, the tax 
obligations of the mixed parties will be 
incurred separately by each party in 
proportion to their holdings.

Non-KSA entities pay income tax on KSA
income derived from KSA sources at a
flat rate of 20%, as adjusted.

KSA registered entities are required to
also withhold payments to foreign entities
for purposes of paying a withholding tax. 

Amounts of such withholdings include:

• management fees: 
20% withholding tax

• royalties: 15% withholding tax

• rent/technical/consulting fees: 
5% withholding tax

Note that in practice, determining the 
correct tax withholdings will require 
consulting with a suitable tax advisor. 
As a legal matter, it is imperative for 
foreign companies to obtain certificates
of tax clearance and to maintain such 
certificates in effect at all times, as failure
to do so, or the expiration of such 
certificates, will bar companies from 
performing other government operations,
entering into contracts, and renewing
other permits and registrations critical 
to operating the company in the KSA.

Language

Although KSA courts and authorities will
only enforce contracts presented to them
in an Arabic form, many foreign 
companies find it is possible to operate 
in the KSA using primarily their English
contracts for a number of purposes.
Companies are prudent however to plan
translations in advance of any documents
executed, as it is regularly required for
companies to present these documents
to government inspectors and other 
parties who will not deal with documents
prepared in a language other than Arabic.
Note that all official company records,
including human resources, accounting,
corporate documents, and other 
materials must be in Arabic.



Dispute Resolution Processes

General Courts 
The General Courts, or Shari'ah courts,
have primary jurisdiction in criminal and
many types of civil matters, and have 
ultimate jurisdiction to hear any dispute
involving matters of Shari'ah law unless 
a statute has specifically transferred 
jurisdiction to another forum (see below).

Board of Grievances 
The Board of Grievances deals with 
disputes in which the KSA Government 
is a party and with disputes in the private
sector over commercial transactions 
between private sector parties. Shari'ah
Law will apply to all cases heard by the
Board of Grievances. Enforcement of
judgements is made by the execution
judge under the Enforcement Law 2012.

Arbitration
Arbitration is allowed within the KSA and
is governed by the new Arbitration Law of
2012 and its implementing Regulations.
Arbitral awards have immediate effect,
subject to limited objection grounds, and
can be enforced under the Enforcement
Law 2012. Foreign Arbitration remains an
option, but enforcement remains difficult,
depending on the specific location of the
foreign arbitration and the substansive
law applied by the arbitral tribunal. 
Arbitration is not permitted where one of
the parties is a KSA Government entity,
except by specific permission of the
Council of Ministers. 

Alternative Dispute Resolution Authorities
Several separate authorities, committees,
and dispute resolution entities have been
implemented by statute to handle 
specialised matters. Among these, some
of the more important entities include the
Banking Dispute Resolution Committee,
the Insurance Dispute Resolution 
Committee, the Securities Dispute 
Resolution Committee, the Labour 
Dispute Resolution Committees, and the
Media Dispute Resolution Committee.
These judicial entities can issue decisions
and judgments up to limits prescribed 
by the relevant statute establishing the
authority. There are plans underway 
to shift ultimate authority from these 
tribunals and committees to the General
Courts, with the Board of Grievances 
to act as an administrative authority, 
but implementation has been part of a
broader effort of judicial reform in the
KSA.

Qualification - This is a brief overview of
some of the legal principles that will apply
to any transaction or business activity
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. It is 
necessarily an overview and is intended
to be only an introduction. Reference
should be made to qualified Saudi 
Arabian counsel before embarking on 
any particular transaction or business 
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

For more information regarding Saudi Arabian Law, 
please contact Clyde & Co LLP

www.clydeco.com
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• Listings with links to up-and-coming trade shows

• Access to the UKTI video library





British Embassy in Riyadh

We support UK interests in Saudi
Arabia, and build better links between
the two countries.

We build wide-ranging and mutually
beneficial relations between our two
governments and peoples in the
areas of trade and investment, 
education, culture, development, 
energy and climate security and 
defence. We help the legitimate
movement of people between the
two countries and offer assistance 
to British citizens in genuine need.

British Ambassador to Saudi 
Arabia - Sir John Jenkins

The Ambassador represents 
Her Majesty The Queen and the 
UK government in the country to
which they are appointed. They 
are responsible for the direction 
and work of the Embassy and its 
Consulates, including political work,
trade and investment, press and 
cultural relations, and visa and 
consular services.

Source - www.gov.uk/world/saudi-arabia

Embassy Services

Visas
For information on whether you require a
visa for the United Kingdom and how to
apply go to the UK Border Agency 
website. www.ukba.homeoffice.gov.uk

Births, deaths and marriages
Information on how you can register a
birth or death which occurred overseas,
and legal documents for couples marrying
or entering into civil partnerships abroad.

Passports and emergency travel 
documents
How to renew or replace your British
passport when visiting the UK and 
information on getting replacement travel
documents if your passport is lost or stolen.

Travel advice
Information on staying safe and avoiding
problems when living or travelling abroad,
with links to our embassies, high 
commissions and other diplomatic posts
across the world.

Legalisation Service
How to get official confirmation that your
UK public documentation is genuine so it
can be accepted by foreign authorities.
The UK does not require any documents
to be legalised for use within the UK.

Contact Details
Address: British Embassy 

PO Box 94351
11693 
Saudi Arabia

Email: Consular.Riyadh@fco.gov.uk
Telephone: +966 (0) 11 4819 100
Fax information: +966 (0) 11 481 9350
Fax defence: +966 (0) 11 481 9235
Fax corporate services: 
+966 (0) 11 481 9337
UKTI: +966 (0) 11 481 9339
UKBA: +966 (0) 11 481 9294
Consular: +966 (0) 11 481 9229

Visit the Website and download the free Mobile App
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Resources:

Contact Details

If you have a specific export enquiry
about Saudi Arabia that is not answered
by the information in this guide, you may
contact:

• UKTI London

Address: 

UK Trade & Investment, 
1 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1H 0ET, United Kingdom.

General Telephone Enquiries: 
+44 (0)20 7215 5000

Fax: +44 (0)141 228 3693

Email: enquiries@ukti.gsi.gov.uk

Opening Hours:
Monday to Friday, 9am to 5pm (GMT)

For contact details of specific sector
heads in each post, please visit the UK 
in Saudi Arabia website:
www.gov.uk/world/saudi-arabia

• The Middle East Association

Address: 

Bury House, 33 Bury Street
London, SW1Y 6AX

T. +44 (0)207 839 2137
F. +44 (0)207 839 6121
E. info@the-mea.co.uk
www.the-mea.co.uk

If you would prefer to directly contact the
team in Saudi Arabia, please contact:

• British Embassy Riyadh

Address: 

British Embassy, 
PO Box 94351, Riyadh 11693, 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Contact Name: 
Chris Innes-Hopkins, 
Director of UKTI, Saudi Arabia

Email: commercial.riyadh@fco.gov.uk

Enquiries: +966 (0) 11 481 9100
UKTI: +966 (0) 11 481 9339

Fax information: +966 (0) 11 481 9350
Fax defence: +966 (0) 11 481 9235
Fax corporate services: 
+966 (0) 11 481 9337
UKBA: +966 (0) 11 481 9294
Consular: +966 (0) 11 481 9229

Opening hours: 
Sunday to Thursday, 5am to 12pm (GMT) 
Sunday to Thursday, 8am to 3pm (Local)
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• British Consulate General Jeddah

Address: 

British Consulate General,
PO Box 393, Jeddah 21411, 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Telephone: 
(include international dialling code)  
+966 (0) 12 622-5550 ext. 2212

Fax: +966 (0) 12 622 6249

Opening hours: 
Sunday to Thursday, 5am to 12pm (GMT)
Sunday to Thursday, 8am to 3pm (Local)

• British Trade Office Al Khobar

Address: 

British Trade Office, 
PO Box 3672, 31952, 
Saudi Arabia

Telephone: 
(include international dialling code) 
+966 (0) 13 882 5300 / 
+966 (0) 13 882 5146 / 
+966 (0) 13 882 5470

Fax: +966 (0) 13 882 5384

Opening Hours: 
Sunday to Thursday, 5am to 12pm (GMT)
Sunday to Thursday, 8am to 3pm (Local)

Additional Useful Links:

UK Trade & Investment:
www.ukti.gov.uk

Foreign & Commonwealth Office:
www.gov.uk/fco

British Council:
www.britishcouncil.org 

Trade Tariff:
www.gov.uk/trade-tariff

Middle East Association: 
www.the-mea.co.uk

British Chambers of Commerce:
www.britishchambers.org.uk

IoD (Institute of Directors):
www.iod.com

CBI (Confederation of British Industry):
www.cbi.org.uk

Institute of Export (IOE):
www.export.org.uk 

British Expertise:
www.britishexpertise.org

Department for Business, 
Innovation & Skills (BIS):
www.gov.uk/bis
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Useful Links:

Saudi Links and Resources:

• Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Supreme 
Economic Council - coordinates the 
Kingdom's many economic agencies
www.sec.gov.sa

• Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency 
(SAMA) - www.sama.gov.sa

• Ministry of Economy and Planning - 
The MEP work to ensure that all 
government agencies work in a 
well-coordinated and well-informed 
manner to achieve the Kingdom's 
economic priorities. The Ministry 
prepares a periodic economic report 
on the Kingdom, featuring analysis of 
the economy, progress made and 
likely developments and prepares the
five year development plan - 
www.mep.gov.sa

• Saudi Industrial Property Authority 
(MODON) - responsible for 
developing and supervising industrial 
land in the Kingdom -
www.modon.gov.sa

• Ministry of Commerce and Industry - 
responsible for all aspects of 
commercial and industrial activity 
in the Kingdom - 
www.commerce.gov.sa

• Council of Saudi Chambers - With 
the expansion of the Kingdom's 
economy and the need to consolidate
the commercial base, the network of 
Chambers of Commerce has played 
an increasingly active role in the 
development of the Kingdom's 
commercial activity - www.csc.org.sa

• Riyadh Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry - www.riyadhchamber.com

• Ministry of Labour - responsible for 
the development and use of the 
Kingdom's human resources, 
including manpower planning, labour 
relations and the general monitoring 
of all matters relating to employment, 
such as labour visas - www.mol.gov.sa 

• General Directorate of Passports - 
responsible for implementing and 
monitoring policies and programs 
related to residency and human traffic
within Saudi Arabia, such as:
The Iqama (Residence Permit) 
System, organising expatriate arrivals
in the Kingdom and related visa, 
registration and renewal issues. They 
regulate and monitor companies and 
establishments that employ non-
Saudis and aliens - www.gdp.gov.sa

• Department of Zakat and Income Tax 
(DZIT) - responsible for tax policy and
tax collection in the Kingdom - 
www.dzit.gov.sa

• General Organization of Social 
Insurance (GOSI) - The General 
Organization for Social Insurance 
(GOSI), administers the Kingdom's 
national insurance program by paying
allowances and other compensations
to individuals and families in the 
Kingdom - www.gosi.gov.sa

• Saudi Food and Drug Authority - 
www.sfda.gov.sa



Disclaimer

Whereas every effort has been made to
ensure that the information given in this
Guide is accurate, neither International
Market Advisor (IMA), UK Trade & 
Investment (UKTI) nor its parent 
Departments, the Department for 
Business, Innovation & Skills (BIS) or the
Foreign & Commonwealth Office (FCO),
accept liability for any errors, omissions or
misleading statements and no warranty is
given or responsibility accepted as to the
standing of any individual, firm, company
or other organisation mentioned.

The purpose of the Doing Business
Guides, prepared by International Market
Advisor (IMA) in association with UK Trade
& Investment (UKTI), is to provide 
information to help recipients form their
own judgments about making business
decisions as to whether to invest or 
operate in a particular country. 

The Report's contents were believed 
(at the time that the Report was prepared) 
to be reliable, but no representations 
or warranties, express or implied, are 
made or given by IMA, UKTI or its 
parent Departments (the Foreign and 
Commonwealth Office (FCO) and the (BIS)
Department for Business, Innovation and
Skills) as to the accuracy of the Report, 
its completeness or its suitability for any
purpose. In particular, none of the 
Report's contents should be construed 
as advice or solicitation to purchase or
sell securities, commodities or any other
form of financial instrument. No liability 
is accepted by IMA, UKTI, the FCO or 
BIS for any loss or damage (whether 
consequential or otherwise) which may
arise out of or in connection with the report. 

No warranty is given, or responsibility 
accepted as to the standing of any 
individual, firm, company or other 
organisation mentioned.

A range of UK Government support is
available from a portfolio of initiatives
called Solutions for Business. 

The "solutions" are available to qualifying
businesses and cover everything from 
investment and grants through to 
specialist advice, collaborations and 
partnerships. UK Trade & Investment is
the government organisation that helps
UK-based companies succeed in the
global economy and also helps overseas
companies bring their high-quality 
investment to the UK's dynamic economy
- acknowledged as Europe's best place
from which to succeed in global business.
UK Trade & Investment offers expertise
and contacts through its extensive 
network of specialists in the UK, and in
British Embassies and other diplomatic
offices around the world. UKTI provides
companies with the tools they require to
be competitive on the world stage.
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